
 

AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

55 West Williams Avenue Fallon, NV 
June 20, 2023 at 9:00 AM 

 

The Honorable City Council will meet in a regularly scheduled meeting on June 20, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. in 

the City Council Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada. 

Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. The Council may combine two or more agenda items for 

consideration. The Council may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item 

on the agenda at any time. Unless otherwise allowed by the City Council, public comments by an 

individual will be limited to three minutes. 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

 

2. Certification of Compliance with Posting Requirements 

 

3. Public Comments 

General in nature, not relative to any agenda items. No action may be taken on a matter raised 

under this item until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon 

which action will be taken. (For discussion only) 

 

4. Consideration and possible approval of Council Meeting Minutes for May, 30 2023. (For 

possible approval) 

 

5. Approval of Warrants (For possible action) 

A) Accounts Payable 

B) Payroll 

C) Customer Deposit 

 

6. Consideration of application by Lynn Lachine for a mobile food vendor license for The Pony 

Espresso.  (For possible action) 

 

7. Consideration of application by Kimberly Fairbanks for a mobile food vendor license for Kim’s 

Kool Treats.  (For possible action) 

1



 

8. Fallon Police Department Monthly Report for May 2023 (For discussion only). 

 

9. Council and Staff Reports (For discussion only) 

 

10. Public Comments (For discussion only) 

 

11. Executive Session (Closed) 

 

Discuss Litigation Matters (For discussion only) (NRS 241 et.seq.) 

Negotiations with Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (For discussion only) 

Negotiations with Fallon Peace Officers Association (For discussion only) 

 

 

This agenda has been posted on or before 9:00 a.m. on June 14, 2023 at City Hall, District Court 

Building, Churchill County Office Complex, Churchill County Public Library and posted to the City’s 

website (https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada public notice website (https://notice.nv.gov/). 

Members of the public may request the supporting material for this meeting by contacting Elsie M. Lee, 

Deputy City Clerk, City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada, 775-423-

5104.  The supporting material for this meeting is also available to the public on the City’s website 

(https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada public notice website (https://notice.nv.gov/). 

 

/s/ Elsie M. Lee 

 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: Reasonable effort will be made to assist and 

accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring to attend the meeting.  Please call the City 

Clerk's Office at 775-423-5104 in advance so that arrangements may be conveniently made. 

2



May 30, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 1 

 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF FALLON 

55 West Williams Ave 

Fallon, Nevada 

May 30, 2023 

 

The Honorable City Council met in a special meeting on the above date in the Council 

Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada. 

 
Present: 
 

Mayor Ken Tedford 

Councilwoman Kelly Frost 
Councilwoman Karla Kent 

Councilman Paul Harmon 
Chief of Staff Bob Erickson 
City Attorney Mike Mackedon 

Public Works Director Brian Byrd 
Deputy Public Works Ryan Swirczek 
Deputy Public Works Adrian Noriega 

Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee 
Deputy City Clerk Michael O’Neill 
Chief Ron Wenger 

Captain John Riley 
Engineer Derek Zimney 
Emergency Manager Steve Endacott 

 
     

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Ken Tedford at 9:00 a.m.     

  

Mayor Ken Tedford led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor Ken Tedford inquired if the agenda had been posted in compliance with NRS 

requirements. 

 

City Clerk Treasurer Sean Richardson advised that the agenda was posted in 
compliance with the NRS requirements. 
 

Public Comments 

 
Mayor Ken Tedford inquired if there were any public comments.  He noted that 

comments  are to be general in nature, not relative to any agenda items. No action may be taken 

on a matter raised under this item until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda 
as an item upon which action will be taken.   

No comments were noted.   

 

Public hearing on the Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024. 

 

3

Item 4.



May 30, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 2 

 

 

City Clerk Treasurer Sean Richardson stated that pursuant to NRS 354.596, the tentative 

budget was prepared on the appropriate forms as prescribed by the Department of Taxation and 

submitted to the Department of Taxation by the April 15th deadline.  A copy of the tentative 
budget as submitted is attached to the agenda.  The Department of Taxation has since examined 

the City’s tentative budget and has indicated that it is in compliance with the law and appropriate 

regulations.  The Department of Taxations’ letter dated May 22, 2023, is attached.  Notice of 

this public hearing was published in the Fallon Post on May 19, 2023.  The tentative budget has 
been on file and available for inspection at the City Clerk’s Office and at the Churchill County 

Clerk’s Office since April 15, 2023.  This agenda item represents the public’s opportunity to be 

heard and participate in the budget process.  

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any questions or comments from the Council or 
public.  

No comments were noted. 

 

Consideration and possible adoption of Final Budget for Fiscal Year Ending June 

30, 2024. 

 

City Clerk Treasurer Sean Richardson stated that pursuant to NRS 354.598 (2), the City 

Council must adopt a final budget on or before June 1 of each year.  If no changes were 
recommended in the previous agenda item, the amounts in the tentative budget would be 

submitted as final to the Nevada Department of Taxation.  If there are any questions, I would be 

happy to answer them at this time. 

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any questions or comments from the Council or 
public.  

Councilwoman Frost thanked Sean for his hard work on the budget.  There are a lot of 

numbers to keep track of and he does an excellent job.  So, thank you Sean. 

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any further questions or comments. 
Councilwoman Kent thanked Sean for going over the budget in such detail and doing a 

great job for the city and motioned to adopt the Final Budget for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 

2024; seconded by Councilman Harmon and approved with a 3-0 vote by the Council.      

 

Public Comments 

 
Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any public comments. 

No comments were noted.  

 

Council and Staff Reports       
 

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any Council or staff reports. 

No reports were noted. 

 

Executive Session       
 
Mayor Tedford tabled the executive session, as it was not needed at this time. 

 

 

 

 

4

Item 4.



May 30, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 3 

 

 

Adjournment 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Tedford adjourned 

the meeting at 9:06 a.m.       

           
________________________________ 

          Mayor Ken Tedford  

 

Attest:___________________________________ 

 Sean C. Richardson, City Clerk-Treasurer 

5

Item 4.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: June 13, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: June 20, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration of application by Lynn Lachine for a mobile food vendor 

license for The Pony Espresso.  (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

 Resolution  Ordinance 

(X) Formal Action/Motion  Other 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve application and to issue a mobile food vendor 

license to Lynn Lachine for The Pony Espresso. 

DISCUSSION: Lynn Lachine, owner of The Pony Espresso has made an application for a mobile food 

vendor license for The Pony Espresso.  A mobile food vendor license is a privileged license that allows 

the licensee to sell food from a motor vehicle, or other type of food service conveyance, for human 

consumption and which is used to sell and dispense food or beverages to customers.  

The application has been reviewed by Deputy City Attorney Trent deBraga, City Engineer Derek 

Zimney, Captain Ron Wenger, and Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee and has been recommended for 

approval.     

FISCAL IMPACT: Annual mobile food vendor license fee revenue.     

 

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

 

PREPARED BY: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

6

Item 6.



7

Item 6.



8

Item 6.



9

Item 6.



10

Item 6.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: June 13, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: June 20, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration of application by Kimberly Fairbanks for a mobile food 

vendor license for Kim’s Kool Treats.  (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

 Resolution  Ordinance 

(X) Formal Action/Motion  Other 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve application and to issue a mobile food vendor 

license to Kimberly Fairbanks for Kim’s Kool Treats. 

DISCUSSION: Kimberly Fairbanks, owner of Kim’s Kool Treats has made an application for a mobile 

food vendor license for Kim’s Kool Treats.  A mobile food vendor license is a privileged license that 

allows the licensee to sell food from a motor vehicle, or other type of food service conveyance, for 

human consumption and which is used to sell and dispense food or beverages to customers.  

The application has been reviewed by Deputy City Attorney Trent deBraga, City Engineer Derek 

Zimney, Captain Ron Wenger, and Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee and has been recommended for 

approval.     

FISCAL IMPACT: Annual mobile food vendor license fee revenue.     

 

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

 

PREPARED BY: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

11

Item 7.



12

Item 7.



13

Item 7.



14

Item 7.



15

Item 7.



16

Item 8.



17

Item 8.



18

Item 8.



19

Item 8.



20

Item 8.



21

Item 8.



22

Item 8.



23

Item 8.



24

Item 8.



25

Item 8.



26

Item 8.



27

Item 8.



28

Item 8.



29

Item 8.


	Top
	Item 4.	minutes 5-23-30 (For possible approval)
	5-30-23 Council (waiting for approval)

	Item 6.	The pony espresso
	The Pony Espresso 6-20-23
	the pony espresso_Redacted

	Item 7.	Kims Kool Treats
	Kims Kool Treats 6-20-23
	Kims Kool Treats_Redacted

	Item 8.	May PD Report
	May PD Report

	Bottom

